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WIT-14277
Corrigan, Martina 

From: Carroll, Ronan 
Personal Information redacted by the USI

Sent: 22 September 2016 15:41 
To: McAllister, Charlie; Gishkori, Esther; Weir, Colin 
Subject: RE: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 

Importance: High 

Charlie/Colin 
So can I ask and offer some suggestions/solutions as to how we may monitor progress against the action listed 
below. The clock is ticking now toward December 
Come back to me if you wish me to action anything/all 

1. That I (initially) have a series of face to face meetings with Mr O’Brien and aim to have resolution or 
plan for resolution in next 3 months. That is by mid December. I propose the first meeting would 
involve you me and Mr O’Brien – At the first meeting obviously after the context of the meeting 
being explained the proposed plan/actions need to be shared with AOB and agreed 

2. To implement a clear plan to clear triage backlog. – is this the outpatient referral letters, including 
RF’s? How are you planning to monitor that this is cleared? I would propose with regard to the RF’s 
that I would ask the cancer team to monitor the triage turnaround, with regard to outpatients I 
would ask Anita to put a process in place to monitor 

3. Make arrangements to validate the review backlog and adapt clinic new to review ratios to reduce 
this – RBL validation – are we offering additional Pas for this to be done? If not, then something in his 
job plan will have to stop for this clinical validation to happen. Then when this task has been 
completed the remaining on the RBL can only be dealt by as your suggestion the template being 
adjusted, this has a lead in time of 6 weeks due to partial booking process. When this is 
implemented we will monitor the progress of AOBs RBL (I can have this run at anytime) 

4. All correspondence to GPs and copies for patient centre /ECR to be done at time of consultation – I 
will speak to Anita to ensure AOBs secretary receives digital dictation following any consultation 

5. All patient notes to be return from home without exception NA 
6. These meetings will report back regularly to Dr McCallister as AMD and he will be involved in some 

further meeting to assist me and provide support when needed absolutely 
7. Throughout the process we want to encourage full engagement and have Mr O’Brien understand 

that if we achieve these aims through these processes that will satisfy the Trust and no further actions 
would be taken 

8. That monitoring would continue to ensure there is no drift with an understanding that if this 
happened further investigations would take place. 

Ronan Carroll 
Assistant Director Acute Services 
ATICs/Surgery & Elective Care 

Personal Information 
redacted by the USI

From: McAllister, Charlie 
Sent: 21 September 2016 11:55 
To: Gishkori, Esther; Weir, Colin; Carroll, Ronan 
Subject: RE: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 

Hi Colin 

Thank you very much for this. Apart from the fact that you spelt my name wrong (!) this is absolutely excellent and I 
agree completely. It would be important to do this in a positive/constructive/supportive role and that Mr O’Brien 
would be aware of this. I think that this approach will give the best chance to achieve this. And for improving the 
current situation. 
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WIT-14278
Since I can’t improve on this I am forwarding in toto. 

Thanks 

Charlie 
From: Weir, Colin 
Sent: 16 September 2016 14:41 
To: McAllister, Charlie 
Subject: Action Plan 

Charlie 
These are my initial thoughts. Anything to add? Change? 

Dear Dr McCallister 

Further to discussions I propose that I as CD and you as AMD implement the following action plan in relation 
to outstanding issues in respect of Mr O’Brien 

1. That I (initially) have a series of face to face meetings with Mr O’Brien and aim to have resolution or 
plan for resolution in next 3 months. That is by mid December. I propose the first meeting would 
involve you me and Mr O’Brien 

2. To implement a clear plan to clear triage backlog. 
3. Make arrangements to validate the review backlog and adapt clinic new to review ratios to reduce 

this 
4. All correspondence to GPs and copies for patient centre /ECR to be done at time of consultation 
5. All patient notes to be return from home without exception 
6. These meetings will report back regularly to Dr McCallister as AMD and he will be involved in some 

further meeting to assist me and provide support when needed 
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

Colin Weir FRCSEd, FRCSEng, FFSTEd 
Consultant Surgeon | Honorary Lecturer in Surgery | AMD Education and Training |Clinical Director SEC 
Southern Health and Social Care Trust 

Secretary Jennifer Personal Information redacted 
by the USI

From: Gishkori, Esther 
Sent: 15 September 2016 14:59 
To: Weir, Colin; McAllister, Charlie; Carroll, Ronan 
Subject: FW: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 

FYI below. 
……and my response will be? 

Esther Gishkori 
Director of Acute Services 
Southern Health and Social Care Trust 

Office 
Personal Information redacted by the USI

Mobile 
Personal Information redacted by the USI
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WIT-14279
Personal Information redacted by the USI

From: Wright, Richard 
Sent: 15 September 2016 14:52 
To: Gishkori, Esther 
Cc: Toal, Vivienne 
Subject: Re: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 

Hi Esther. As director of the service naturally we have to listen to your opinion. Before I would consider conceding to 
any delay in moving forward with what was our agreed position after the oversight meeting I would need to see 
what plans are in place to deal with the issues and understand how progress would be monitored over the three 
month period. 
Perhaps when we have seen these we could meet again to consider. regards Richard 

Sent from my iPad 

On 15 Sep 2016, at 14:40, Gishkori, Esther  wrote: Personal Information redacted by the USI

Dear Richard and Vivienne, 
Following our oversight committee on Tuesday 13th September I had a meeting with Charlie 
McAllister and Ronan Carroll, my AMD and AD  for surgery. 
I mentioned the case that was brought to the oversight meeting in relation to Mr O’Brien and the 
plan of action. 

Actually, Charlie and Colin Weir already have plans to deal with the urology backlog in general and 
Mr O’Brien’s performance was of course, part of that. 
Now that they both work locally with him, they have plenty of ideas to try out and since they are 
both relatively new into post, I would like try their strategy first. 

I am therefore respectfully requesting that the local team be given 3 more calendar months to 
resolve the issues raised in relation to Mr O’Brien’s performance. 

I appreciate you highlighting the fact that this long running issue has not yet been resolved. 
However, given the trust and respect that Mr O’Brien has won over the years, not to mention his 
life-long commitment to the urology service which he built up singlehandedly, I would like to give 
my new team the chance to resolve this in context and for good. This I feel would be the best 
outcome all round. 

Happy to discuss any time and I will of course brief the oversight committee of any progress we 
make. 

Many thanks 
Best 
Esther. 

Esther Gishkori 
Director of Acute Services 
Southern Health and Social Care Trust 
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WIT-14281
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
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WIT-14282

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
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WIT-14283
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
<image001.png> 
<image002.png> 

Office     Mobile 
Personal Information redacted by the USI Personal Information redacted by the USI

Personal Information redacted by the USI

<image003.png><image004.png><image005.png> 

3 

Received from SHSCT on 16/05/22.  Annotated by the Urology Services Inquiry.



 

  
  

   
   

  

 
 

         
 

 

  
    

   
 

 
 

 
 

          

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
        

 
 

   
    

   
 

 
 

   
 

    
 

      
 

  

Personal Information redacted by the USI

WIT-14284
Carroll, Ronan 

From: Scullion, Damian 
Sent: 
To: Corrigan, Martina; Murray, Helena 
Cc: Carroll, Ronan; Haynes, Mark 
Subject: RE: Regional Urology proposal 

24 February 2017 10:55 

Martina 

We are stretched on Thursdays but could explore it as extra anaesthetic sessions. Mark has mentioned to me that the funding is from Belfast. Could you please clarify and I can look into anaesthetist doing them as extra sessions 

Damian 

From: Corrigan, Martina 
Sent: 24 February 2017 08:58 
To: Murray, Helena; Scullion, Damian 
Cc: Carroll, Ronan; Haynes, Mark 
Subject: RE: Regional Urology proposal 

Thanks Helena 

As discussed we can try and work around patient not staying in recovery  but I was wondering about the rest as I am conscious these lists were coming up soon and Mark will need to give notice to patients. Damian same for have we any availability 
for anaesthetists for proposed sessions? 

Regards 

Martina 

Martina Corrigan 
Head of ENT, Urology, Ophthalmology and Outpatients 
Craigavon Area Hospital 

INTERNAL: EXT Personal 
Information 

redacted by the USI
Personal Information redacted by the USI

Personal Information redacted by the USI

if dialling from Avaya phone. If dialling from old phone please dial 
EXTERNAL 
Mobile 

Personal Information redacted by 
the USI

From: Murray, Helena 
Sent: 10 February 2017 11:56 
To: Corrigan, Martina; Scullion, Damian 
Cc: Carroll, Ronan 
Subject: RE: Regional Urology proposal 

Dear Martina, 

I have left this request with the sisters as I am on leave next week. 

The problem  lies in securing  a fourth recovery nurse as currently we struggle to provide a third nurse. Also beds blocked in recovery for the remainder of the day post-surgery. 

Would Saturdays be an option? 
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Pamela and Emmajane will be in contact next week 

Regards 
Helena 

WIT-14285

From: Corrigan, Martina 
Sent: 09 February 2017 17:37 
To: Murray, Helena; Scullion, Damian 
Cc: Carroll, Ronan 
Subject: Regional Urology proposal 

Dear both, 

Mark Haynes has been involved in Regional discussions in respect to Nephron Sparing Surgery as Belfast Trust are going to no longer able to  provide this service. Part of the plan is that Mark if he can secure some additional sessions will do them here 
and these will be all as additional and all costs will be paid for by the Board. 

For March there has been 6 suitable patients identified for here, and Mark therefore would require 3 additional theatre sessions (can do 2 cases per session). 

I have had a look at the Theatre rota for March and really the only suitable ‘vacant’ sessions available are in Theatre 8 on Thursday mornings, i.e. 2nd March, 9th March, 16th March or 30th March. 

Mark has also advised that we should plan to keep these patients in recovery overnight (again there will be funding if additional resources are required). 

Ronan has asked me to email you both to advise you of this plan and to see if this will be possible to get 3 of the above sessions staffed? 

Happy to discus. 

Thanks 

Martina 

Martina Corrigan 
Head of ENT, Urology, Ophthalmology and Outpatients 
Craigavon Area Hospital 
Telephone: 
Mobile : 

Personal Information redacted by the USI

2 

Received from SHSCT on 16/05/22.  Annotated by the Urology Services Inquiry.



 

 
  

 
       

   

 
 

        
 

 
 

 

  
  

       
  

  
  

 
    

 
 

   
  

 
 

  
  

  
  

   
 

 
 

    
 

 
 

  
 

 
  

  
 

  
  

 

Personal Information redacted by the USI

Carroll, Ronan 

WIT-14286

From: Scullion, Damian 
Sent: 06 September 2019 12:48 
To: Carroll, Ronan 
Cc: Rutherford-Jones, Neville; Clarke, Chris; Kumar, Devendra; Murray, Helena 
Subject: RE: Allocation letter updated 

Importance: High 

Ronan 

In view of 30% reduction, will not view to appoint anaesthetist as will be able to cover ophthalmology lists with current consultants. 

Regards 

Damian 

From: Carroll, Ronan 
Sent: 26 August 2019 17:10 
To: Corrigan, Martina; Cassells, Carol; Murray, Helena; McClements, Melanie; Scullion, Damian; Kearney, Emmajane 
Cc: McKenna, Marti 
Subject: RE: Allocation letter updated 
Importance: High 

Great can everyone progress with appointment in accordance with our IPT submission 

Ronan Carroll 
Assistant Director Acute Services 
Anaesthetics & Surgery/Elective Care 
Mob 

Personal Information redacted by 
the USI

From: Corrigan, Martina 
Sent: 23 August 2019 16:57 
To: Carroll, Ronan; Cassells, Carol; Murray, Helena; McClements, Melanie 
Cc: McKenna, Marti 
Subject: FW: Allocation letter updated 

Good evening, 

For information , allocation letter for staffing for the STH Day Elective Centre 

Regards 

Martina 

Martina Corrigan 
Head of ENT, Urology, Ophthalmology & Outpatients 
Craigavon Area Hospital 

Telephone: 
Personal 

Information 
redacted by the 

USIPersonal Information redacted by the 
USI

Personal Information redacted by the 
USI

EXT (Internal)
 (External) 
 (Mobile) 
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From: Watson, Tracey 

WIT-14287
Personal Information redacted by the USI

Sent: 23 August 2019 14:51 
To: Armstrong, Marian; Cathy Gillan; Chris Allam; Damien Moore; Dunwoody, Glen; Hanrahan, Mary; John McKeown; Kieran Quinn; Louise O'Dalaigh; Maggie Parks; Margaret McMullan; McKenna, Marti; Corrigan, Martina; McAteer, Patriciam; Megan 
West; Molloy, Monica; Pauline McGaw; Scott, Heather; sorcha dougan; Watson, Tracey 
Subject: Allocation letter updated 

Sorry previous email recalled a wrong attachment included. 

Dear all 

Please see attached allocation letter,  you may have already received from your DoP. 

Regards 

Tracey 

Tracey Watson 
Project Manager Ophthalmology 
RGH 

Personal Information redacted by the 
USI

This message contains information from Belfast Health And Social Care Trust which may be privileged and confidential. 
If you believe you are not the intended recipient any disclosure, distribution or use of the contents is prohibited. 
If you have received this message in error please notify the sender immediately. 

This email has been scanned for the presence of computer viruses. 
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Carroll, Ronan 

WIT-14288

From: Scullion, Damian 
Sent: 25 September 2020 11:23 
To: Clarke, Chris; Rutherford-Jones, Neville; Kumar, Devendra 
Cc: Carroll, Ronan 
Subject: FW: Emergency General Surgery 
Attachments: Emergency General Surgery.docx 

Importance: High 

Dear all, 

Please see below and attachment from Ronan relating to the new proposed Southern Trust surgical model. This does have significant implications for ATICS moving forward and  it is imperative that we are represented here. I am busy all day in 
orthopaedic so would appreciate if one or all of you could attend. 

Please let me know and I can send nominations. 

Regards 

Damian 

From: Carroll, Ronan 
Sent: 25 September 2020 10:08 
To: Weir, Colin; Gilpin, David; Nelson, Amie; Conway, Barry; Tariq, S; Wells, CharlotteAnne; Khan, Ahmed; Matthews, Josephine; Murphy, Seamus; Murphy, Philip; McVey, Anne; Burke, Mary; Hampton, Gareth; Robinson, Jeanette; Weir, Colin; Waddell, 
Sandra; McClements, Melanie; Kamath, Meeta; Scullion, Damian; Haynes, Mark 
Cc: Livingston, Laura 
Subject: FW: Emergency General Surgery 
Importance: High 

Morning everyone 
As you are aware there will be challenges with consultant surgeon cover at DHH which requires urgent action.  
I have been asked by the Interim Director of Acute Services to chair a group to develop a surgical model which will provide a safe emergency surgery service across the Trust. 
I have attached a briefing paper which documents the issues which are being faced by the service. 
There will be the need to engage with all stakeholders but in the first instance I want to hold an urgent internal meeting Thursday 1st October art 11am via MySpace to get everyone views 

Could you please respond to my secretary Laura Livingstone to confirm your or your nomination attendee 
No doubt I have missed someone or specialty out, if I have can you please forward onto them 
Thank you. 
Ronan 

Ronan Carroll 
Assistant Director Acute Services 
Anaesthetics & Surgery 
Mobile Personal Information redacted 

by the USI
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Future Provision of the Emergency General 
Surgery Service 

DRAFT V0.1 22-Sep-20 

1. Introduction 

This paper sets out the challenges relating to the continued provision of safe and 
sustainable emergency surgery services on the Trust’s two acute hospital sites, 
Craigavon Area Hospital (CAH) and Daisy Hill Hospital (DHH). Consultant cover at 
DHH will shortly be significantly depleted, requiring urgent action. However this 
situation, along with new ways of working which have had to be introduced to sustain 
services during the Covid-19 pandemic, also present the opportunity to develop a 
new service model. This paper sets out an alternative service model for 
consideration by the Trust’s senior management team, consolidating assessment 
and ongoing treatment for emergency surgery patients at CAH in tandem with urgent 
care centres and ambulatory care centres on both sites. 

2. Current Service Model 
Prior to the temporary changes to emergency services introduced to manage the 
initial Covid-19 surge, emergency general surgery was provided at Craigavon Area 
and Daisy Hill Hospitals. Elective general surgery was and continues to be 
undertaken on both sites, albeit elective activity is currently constrained due to Covid 
restrictions. The current service model described below refers to the ‘pre-Covid’ 
model of care for emergency surgery. 

Emergency admissions in the main are via the Emergency Departments. Separate 
rotas are in place in each hospital to maintain the necessary out of hours cover. 

A ‘surgeon of the week’ (SOW) model is operated on each of the two hospital sites. 
A named consultant, along with a registrar and an F2/CT (foundation doctor year 2/ 
core trainee), is responsible for all emergency admissions for the week. The SOW 
team has no elective commitments and is responsible for all management of general 
surgery emergency cases including: 

 Ward rounds 
 Emergency theatre operating 
 Access clinic (ambulatory patients) 
 Weekly urgent bookable list 

Due to the large emergency take at Craigavon Hospital a second surgeon was 
added to the SOW rota, working Monday to Friday between 8am and 1pm. The 
second surgeon is responsible for all outlying emergency surgical cases and shares 
in the emergency theatre/urgent bookable workload. 
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WIT-14290

Funded Medical Posts 

The medical staff posts shown in the table below are funded across both sites. The 
consultant breast surgeons have not been included in the figures as they do not 
participate in the general surgery rota. 

Grade 
Consultants1 15 
Specialty & Associate Specialist (SAS) 5 
NIMDTA Specialty Trainee (ST) 7 
NIMDTA Core Trainee (CT) 7 
NIMDTA Foundation Doctor (FY1/FY2) 4 x F2, 13xF1 
Trust Post filled by locums 3 x SpR, 2 x SHO2 

Ward based SHOs3 2-4 
1 9 consultant posts are based at CAH and 6 at DHH. 1 post at DHH has been funded by the Trust at 
risk and is filled by a long term locum. 
2 Funded at risk by the Trust 
3 Funding to be confirmed 

Activity 

Emergency General Surgery Admissions 

 Average 5420 adult emergency surgery admissions per year across the 3 
year period 

 Average 9 a day to CAH and 6 a day to DHH 

 We occupy 70 adult emergency beds a day 
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WIT-14291

 Paediatric emergency surgery admissions average 428 per year across 
the 3 year period 

 There is a significant reduction in 2019/20 which we believe is due to the 
paediatric ambulatory service 

 In 2019/20 the total admissions were 363, an average of 0.6 per day at 
CAH and 0.5 per day at DHH. 

Additional activity data are provided in Appendix 1. 
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3. Key Drivers 

WIT-14292

The key drivers for the need to change the way in which emergency general surgery 
is delivered are summarised as follows with further detail provided in the paragraphs 
below: 

 Provision of safe, sustainable, high quality care 

 Recruitment and retention of staff 

 Making best use of specialist medical/professional expertise to improve 
outcomes for patients 

 Alignment with national and regional strategic direction 

Provision of Safe, Sustainable, High Quality Care 

The general surgery team is committed to providing the highest standards of 
evidence-based care for our patients. The provision of high quality emergency 
general surgery services on two sites has historically been extremely challenging. 
Adequate consultant cover both during the day and out of hours is a prerequisite for 
a safe service. Maintaining consultant cover at Daisy Hill has been difficult and the 
situation will shortly be exacerbated as the number of consultants will be reducing 
from 6 to 3. On call cover for the out of hours periods will be particularly challenging. 
There is no potential for cover to be provided from Craigavon without diluting the 
cover there. 

The current position with regard to general surgery consultants in post and cover for 
the on call rota is shown in the table below: 

In Post & Available Participating in On Call 
CAH 9 7 
DHH 6 5 
Trust 15 12 

The following changes will adversely affect consultant cover in the near future: 

 2 consultants are moving from Daisy Hill to Craigavon for career development 
reasons. Both participate in the on call rota at DHH; 

 1 consultant based at CAH is going on a career break in October (to 
undertake his fellowship). He participates in the on call rota at CAH; 

 1 consultant based at DHH is retiring. He does not currently participate in the 
on call rota. 
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These changes will affect the numbers as follows: 

WIT-14293

In Post & Available Participating in On Call 
CAH 10 8 
DHH 3 3 
Trust 13 11 

This will leave 2 substantive consultants and a long term locum based at DHH and 
providing out of hours cover. This number is insufficient to provide a workable rota 
both during the in and out of hours periods. Whilst locum cover can be utilised as an 
interim measure, it is unsustainable particularly for the out of hours periods, and it is 
also extremely costly. 

The changes within UK surgical training specifically subspecialty specialisation and 
the decline of a wider exposure to surgical specialties during specialist registrar 
training, means that newly appointed consultant surgeons are less experienced and 
less confident of their abilities in emergency general surgery than their predecessors. 
They are less equipped to deal with the repertoire of cases presenting to District 
General Hospitals. Access to adequate peer support and mentoring for newly 
appointed consultants is essential to ensure the provision of a safe, high quality 
service. 

Recruitment and Retention of Medical Staff 

There is a finite pool of potential applicants for surgical consultants with Trusts 
competing to attract candidates from the same pool. Doctors are clear about their 
minimum requirements from the employing Trust in terms of career 
development/opportunities for sub-specialisation; rotas and work-life balance; access 
to specialist staff and resources such as critical care, interventional radiology, theatre 
lists etc; peer support particularly during the early period of their consultant career; 
and facilities and equipment/technology. They often have a choice of posts and will 
consider how closely a post fulfills the criteria that are important to them. This has 
been demonstrated very clearly in recent recruitment drives for general surgery 
consultants at DHH. 

There have been and remain recruitment and retention problems to DHH surgery at 
consultant level. Within the past 5 years 6 separate consultant interviews have 
taken place and 8 surgeons were offered and accepted consultant positions in DHH.  
Of these eight candidates: 

 Two also applied for and took up positions in the Belfast area before ever 
starting in DHH; 

 Three took up positions in DHH but subsequently applied for and accepted 
positions in other Trusts; 
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 The remaining three are in post in DHH; however, one applied for and was 
offered a position in CAH, and, like another DHH surgeon, is overdue for 
transfer to CAH.  

The applicants to DHH consultant positions have also been small in number, and at 
the last two consultant interviews there was only one suitably qualified candidate. 
This is in contrast with recruitment for positions in CAH. Within the last two years 
there have been two consultant interview panels convened. At one, there were two 
jobs and three quality applicants. The unsuccessful candidate was tentatively offered 
a position in DHH, but declined the offer. At the second set of CAH interviews there 
were three jobs and five high quality applicants. 

Making Best Use of Specialist Medical/Professional Expertise 

Having access to a broad range of sub-specialty expertise would benefit patients and 
improve outcomes. Many general surgeons have specialised their practice in order 
to concentrate on treating conditions relating to one area or body system. While this 
has resulted in improved outcomes for patients requiring planned specialist 
intervention, it has also created difficulties in having an appropriately trained and 
available surgical workforce for the treatment and management of emergency 
general surgery patients on multiple sites. Consolidation of the available consultant 
expertise would enable a wider range of sub-specialty expertise to be available. 

Access to the necessary resources such as emergency theatres, diagnostic 
investigations and critical care is essential to provide the best possible care for 
acutely ill patients. Again it is not always possible to provide all of these essential 
elements on multiple sites. Funding is not the only constraint faced by the Trust. 
Increasingly the availability of staff is a significant constraint. There are plans and 
funding to strengthen the high dependency service at DHH to meet with Intensive 
Care Society guidelines but it has not been possible to appoint the necessary 
medical staff. Level 3 critical care is only provided at CAH, limiting the surgeries that 
can be undertaken at DHH.  Concentrating emergency surgery on a single site would 
provide improved access to emergency surgical sub-specialty skillsets; critical care; 
interventional radiology and would reduce critical transfers for the emergency 
patient. 

Alignment with National and Regional Strategic Direction 

Much of the national and regional strategy encourages Trusts to review current 
service models, optimise the deployment of available staff and introduce new models 
of care which avoid inappropriate admission and ensure patients are seen by the 
appropriate professional at the correct time. Nationally many Trusts have 
consolidated their emergency surgical surgery service on a single site with 
appropriate pathways. 
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The 2016 expert panel review of health and social care in Northern Ireland1 

highlighted that one of the major flaws of the current medical workforce mix is that 

‘it is focused on filling rotas and maintaining existing services, even where there are 
clear signs that these are not sustainable, rather than on detailed forecasting of 
demography and need’. 

It recognised that it is proving extremely difficult to recruit and retain junior medical 
staff to deliver services where they would be unlikely to get the experience they need 
in terms of volumes and case mix in order to maintain their skills and develop new 
skills as reflected in the current, high level of vacancies in training posts. The need 
to invest in long term strategic change was emphasised rather than trying to maintain 
the ‘status quo’.  

‘The success of any new service model will be absolutely dependent on staff being 
employed and deployed in such a way that makes the best use of their skills and 
which allows them to continue to develop as professionals while providing the 
services that users and patients need’. 

The subsequent departmental strategy, Health and Wellbeing 2026 Delivering 
Together2 presented by the then Minister of Health, endorsed the Expert Panel’s 
recommendations. In terms of reform to community and hospital services it stated: 

‘Across many different services there is very strong evidence that concentrating 
specialist procedures and services in a smaller number of sites produces 
significantly better outcomes for patients, as well as a much better and more 
supportive environment for staff. The role of our hospitals will therefore 
fundamentally change as they will focus on delivering the highest quality of specialist 
and acute care. However, not every service will be available in every hospital’. 

‘If we persist with our current models of care, even with the best efforts of all staff 
and more investment year on year, waiting lists will continue to grow, our expertise 
will continue to be diluted, and the best possible outcomes for patients will not be 
realised. This is both unsustainable and unacceptable. However, if we accept, as a 
whole range of reviews have, that our services are not best configured for our needs, 
then it follows that recruiting additional staff alone to prop up outdated service 
models, is not the answer. We must be able to provide safe and high quality care 
which keeps up with the fast pace of innovation and health and social care 
developments’. 

More recently the Minister’s plans to support the re-build of services and transform 
urgent and emergency care services include ambulance only emergency 
departments, the creation of urgent care centres and increasing ambulatory care 
provision with appropriate pathways for patients who do not require admission. 

1 SYSTEMS, NOT STRUCTURES: Expert Panel Report CHANGING HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE, Chair Professor Rafael 
Bengoa 
2 HEALTH AND WELLBEING 2026 DELIVERING TOGETHER, Department of Health, October 2016 P
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The proposed future service model involves concentrating the emergency general 
surgery service on the CAH site, with acute cases presenting at DHH being 
transferred to CAH for ongoing care. The emphasis will be on assessment, diagnosis 
and timely appropriate transfer to CAH. Those patients requiring admission will be 
admitted to CAH. There will be no emergency surgical beds at DHH. Figure 1 
depicts the flow of patients. 
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Figure 1: Proposed Emergency General Surgical Flow 
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Key Features: 
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 All appropriate patients will be treated on an ambulatory pathway with ambulatory 
units established at CAH and DHH. Patients may be referred for ambulatory 
treatment by their GP, the emergency departments at CAH or DHH, or the urgent 
care centres at CAH or DHH. 

 Pathways will be put in place which include pre-hospital evaluation/triage for 
primary care. 

 Patients deemed unsuitable for ambulatory care will be assessed at CAH 
(emergency surgical assessment unit) and a decision made regarding their 
ongoing treatment: 

 Admission to the emergency surgical ward 

 Discharge to care of GP 

 Discharge with urgent bookable list date – where surgery eg 
cholecystectomy is required urgently but not immediately 

 Discharge with outpatient appointment 

 Those patients presenting at DHH will be transferred to CAH for assessment. 

 Protocols will be agreed with NIAS to ensure that those patients with symptoms 
requiring obvious surgical assessment are taken directly to CAH. 

 Senior surgical input will be directed to reducing admissions and increasing 
ambulatory care. Surgical assessment and ambulatory should be consultant led. 
Inpatient ward rounds will also be consultant led. 

 Capacity will be available at DHH for other surgical specialities to undertake 
elective surgery eg urology and breast as bed and theatre capacity used for 
emergency surgery will be released. 

 The surgeon of the week model described in section 2 would continue for 
emergency inpatients at CAH. 

 Consultant on-call cover will be in place for both CAH & DHH 24/7. At DHH this 
will provide cover for the general surgical elective patients, in-theatre 
emergencies to Obs and Gynae, advice for medical inpatients, Obs and Gynae 
and paediatric wards. Figures 2 and 3 demonstrate how the surgical cover for 
DHH will function. 

At DHH there would be middle grade cover 24/7. The middle grade cover would 
be provided from home at night. 
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	Corrigan, Martina 
	From: Carroll, Ronan 
	Sent: 22 September 2016 15:41 To: McAllister, Charlie; Gishkori, Esther; Weir, Colin Subject: RE: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 
	Importance: High 
	Charlie/Colin So can I ask and offer some suggestions/solutions as to how we may monitor progress against the action listed below. The clock is ticking now toward December Come back to me if you wish me to action anything/all 
	Ronan Carroll Assistant Director Acute Services 
	From: McAllister, Charlie Sent: 21 September 2016 11:55 To: Gishkori, Esther; Weir, Colin; Carroll, Ronan Subject: RE: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 
	Hi Colin 
	Thank you very much for this. Apart from the fact that you spelt my name wrong (!) this is absolutely excellent and I agree completely. It would be important to do this in a positive/constructive/supportive role and that Mr O’Brien would be aware of this. I think that this approach will give the best chance to achieve this. And for improving the current situation. 
	1 
	Since I can’t improve on this I am forwarding in toto. 
	Thanks 
	Charlie 
	From: Weir, Colin Sent: 16 September 2016 14:41 To: McAllister, Charlie Subject: Action Plan 
	Charlie These are my initial thoughts. Anything to add? Change? 
	Dear Dr McCallister 
	Further to discussions I propose that I as CD and you as AMD implement the following action plan in relation to outstanding issues in respect of Mr O’Brien 
	Colin Weir FRCSEd, FRCSEng, FFSTEd Consultant Surgeon | Honorary Lecturer in Surgery | AMD Education and Training |Clinical Director SEC Southern Health and Social Care Trust 
	Secretary Jennifer 
	From: Gishkori, Esther Sent: 15 September 2016 14:59 To: Weir, Colin; McAllister, Charlie; Carroll, Ronan Subject: FW: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 
	FYI below. ……and my response will be? 
	Esther Gishkori Director of Acute Services Southern Health and Social Care Trust 
	Office Mobile 
	2 
	From: Wright, Richard Sent: 15 September 2016 14:52 To: Gishkori, Esther Cc: Toal, Vivienne Subject: Re: meeting re Mr O'Brien. 
	Hi Esther. As director of the service naturally we have to listen to your opinion. Before I would consider conceding to any delay in moving forward with what was our agreed position after the oversight meeting I would need to see what plans are in place to deal with the issues and understand how progress would be monitored over the three month period. Perhaps when we have seen these we could meet again to consider. regards Richard 
	Sent from my iPad 
	On 15 Sep 2016, at 14:40, Gishkori, Esther 
	Dear Richard and Vivienne, Following our oversight committee on Tuesday 13 September I had a meeting with Charlie McAllister and Ronan Carroll, my AMD and AD  for surgery. I mentioned the case that was brought to the oversight meeting in relation to Mr O’Brien and the plan of action. 
	Actually, Charlie and Colin Weir already have plans to deal with the urology backlog in general and Mr O’Brien’s performance was of course, part of that. Now that they both work locally with him, they have plenty of ideas to try out and since they are both relatively new into post, I would like try their strategy first. 
	I am therefore respectfully requesting that the local team be given 3 more calendar months to resolve the issues raised in relation to Mr O’Brien’s performance. 
	I appreciate you highlighting the fact that this long running issue has not yet been resolved. However, given the trust and respect that Mr O’Brien has won over the years, not to mention his life-long commitment to the urology service which he built up singlehandedly, I would like to give my new team the chance to resolve this in context and for good. This I feel would be the best outcome all round. 
	Happy to discuss any time and I will of course brief the oversight committee of any progress we make. 
	Many thanks Best Esther. 
	Esther Gishkori Director of Acute Services Southern Health and Social Care Trust 
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	Carroll, Ronan 
	Martina We are stretched on Thursdays but could explore it as extra anaesthetic sessions. Mark has mentioned to me that the funding is from Belfast. Could you please clarify and I can look into anaesthetist doing them as extra sessions Damian 
	From: Corrigan, Martina Sent: 24 February 2017 08:58 To: Murray, Helena; Scullion, Damian Cc: Carroll, Ronan; Haynes, Mark Subject: RE: Regional Urology proposal 
	Thanks Helena 
	As discussed we can try and work around patient not staying in recovery  but I was wondering about the rest as I am conscious these lists were coming up soon and Mark will need to give notice to patients. Damian same for have we any availability for anaesthetists for proposed sessions? 
	Regards 
	Martina 
	Martina Corrigan Head of ENT, Urology, Ophthalmology and Outpatients Craigavon Area Hospital 
	INTERNAL: EXT if dialling from Avaya phone. If dialling from old phone please dial EXTERNAL Mobile 
	From: Murray, Helena Sent: 10 February 2017 11:56 To: Corrigan, Martina; Scullion, Damian Cc: Carroll, Ronan Subject: RE: Regional Urology proposal 
	Dear Martina, I have left this request with the sisters as I am on leave next week. The problem  lies in securing  a fourth recovery nurse as currently we struggle to provide a third nurse. Also beds blocked in recovery for the remainder of the day post-surgery. Would Saturdays be an option? 
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	Pamela and Emmajane will be in contact next week 
	Regards Helena 
	From: Corrigan, Martina Sent: 09 February 2017 17:37 To: Murray, Helena; Scullion, Damian Cc: Carroll, Ronan Subject: Regional Urology proposal 
	Dear both, 
	Mark Haynes has been involved in Regional discussions in respect to Nephron Sparing Surgery as Belfast Trust are going to no longer able to  provide this service. Part of the plan is that Mark if he can secure some additional sessions will do them here and these will be all as additional and all costs will be paid for by the Board. For March there has been 6 suitable patients identified for here, and Mark therefore would require 3 additional theatre sessions (can do 2 cases per session). I have had a look a
	Martina Corrigan Head of ENT, Urology, Ophthalmology and Outpatients Craigavon Area Hospital 
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	Carroll, Ronan 
	Ronan In view of 30% reduction, will not view to appoint anaesthetist as will be able to cover ophthalmology lists with current consultants. Regards Damian 
	From: Carroll, Ronan Sent: 26 August 2019 17:10 To: Corrigan, Martina; Cassells, Carol; Murray, Helena; McClements, Melanie; Scullion, Damian; Kearney, Emmajane Cc: McKenna, Marti Subject: RE: Allocation letter updated Importance: High 
	Great can everyone progress with appointment in accordance with our IPT submission 
	Ronan Carroll Assistant Director Acute Services Anaesthetics & Surgery/Elective Care 
	From: Corrigan, Martina Sent: 23 August 2019 16:57 To: Carroll, Ronan; Cassells, Carol; Murray, Helena; McClements, Melanie Cc: McKenna, Marti Subject: FW: Allocation letter updated 
	Good evening, 
	For information , allocation letter for staffing for the STH Day Elective Centre 
	Regards 
	Martina 
	Martina Corrigan Head of ENT, Urology, Ophthalmology & Outpatients Craigavon Area Hospital 
	Telephone: 
	EXT (Internal) (External)  (Mobile) 
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	From: Watson, Tracey 
	Sent: 23 August 2019 14:51 To: Armstrong, Marian; Cathy Gillan; Chris Allam; Damien Moore; Dunwoody, Glen; Hanrahan, Mary; John McKeown; Kieran Quinn; Louise O'Dalaigh; Maggie Parks; Margaret McMullan; McKenna, Marti; Corrigan, Martina; McAteer, Patriciam; Megan West; Molloy, Monica; Pauline McGaw; Scott, Heather; sorcha dougan; Watson, Tracey Subject: Allocation letter updated 
	Sorry previous email recalled a wrong attachment included. Dear all Please see attached allocation letter, you may have already received from your DoP. 
	Regards Tracey 
	Tracey Watson Project Manager Ophthalmology RGH 
	This message contains information from Belfast Health And Social Care Trust which may be privileged and confidential. If you believe you are not the intended recipient any disclosure, distribution or use of the contents is prohibited. If you have received this message in error please notify the sender immediately. 
	This email has been scanned for the presence of computer viruses. 
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	Carroll, Ronan 
	Please see below and attachment from Ronan relating to the new proposed Southern Trust surgical model. This does have significant implications for ATICS moving forward and  it is imperative that we are represented here. I am busy all day in orthopaedic so would appreciate if one or all of you could attend. Please let me know and I can send nominations. Regards Damian 
	From: Carroll, Ronan Sent: 25 September 2020 10:08 To: Weir, Colin; Gilpin, David; Nelson, Amie; Conway, Barry; Tariq, S; Wells, CharlotteAnne; Khan, Ahmed; Matthews, Josephine; Murphy, Seamus; Murphy, Philip; McVey, Anne; Burke, Mary; Hampton, Gareth; Robinson, Jeanette; Weir, Colin; Waddell, Sandra; McClements, Melanie; Kamath, Meeta; Scullion, Damian; Haynes, Mark Cc: Livingston, Laura Subject: FW: Emergency General Surgery Importance: High 
	Morning everyone As you are aware there will be challenges with consultant surgeon cover at DHH which requires urgent action.  I have been asked by the Interim Director of Acute Services to chair a group to develop a surgical model which will provide a safe emergency surgery service across the Trust. I have attached a briefing paper which documents the issues which are being faced by the service. There will be the need to engage with all stakeholders but in the first instance I want to hold an urgent intern
	Could you please respond to my secretary Laura Livingstone to confirm your or your nomination attendee No doubt I have missed someone or specialty out, if I have can you please forward onto them Thank you. Ronan 
	Ronan Carroll Assistant Director Acute Services Anaesthetics & Surgery 
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	DRAFT V0.1 22-Sep-20 
	This paper sets out the challenges relating to the continued provision of safe and sustainable emergency surgery services on the Trust’s two acute hospital sites, Craigavon Area Hospital (CAH) and Daisy Hill Hospital (DHH). Consultant cover at DHH will shortly be significantly depleted, requiring urgent action. However this situation, along with new ways of working which have had to be introduced to sustain services during the Covid-19 pandemic, also present the opportunity to develop a new service model. T
	Prior to the temporary changes to emergency services introduced to manage the initial Covid-19 surge, emergency general surgery was provided at Craigavon Area and Daisy Hill Hospitals. Elective general surgery was and continues to be undertaken on both sites, albeit elective activity is currently constrained due to Covid restrictions. The current service model described below refers to the ‘pre-Covid’ model of care for emergency surgery. 
	Emergency admissions in the main are via the Emergency Departments. Separate rotas are in place in each hospital to maintain the necessary out of hours cover. 
	A ‘surgeon of the week’ (SOW) model is operated on each of the two hospital sites. A named consultant, along with a registrar and an F2/CT (foundation doctor year 2/ core trainee), is responsible for all emergency admissions for the week. The SOW team has no elective commitments and is responsible for all management of general surgery emergency cases including: 
	Due to the large emergency take at Craigavon Hospital a second surgeon was added to the SOW rota, working Monday to Friday between 8am and 1pm. The second surgeon is responsible for all outlying emergency surgical cases and shares in the emergency theatre/urgent bookable workload. 
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	Funded Medical Posts 
	The medical staff posts shown in the table below are funded across both sites. The consultant breast surgeons have not been included in the figures as they do not participate in the general surgery rota. 
	9 consultant posts are based at CAH and 6 at DHH. 1 post at DHH has been funded by the Trust at risk and is filled by a long term locum. Funded at risk by the Trust Funding to be confirmed 
	Activity 
	Emergency General Surgery Admissions 
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	Additional activity data are provided in Appendix 1. 
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	The key drivers for the need to change the way in which emergency general surgery is delivered are summarised as follows with further detail provided in the paragraphs below: 
	Provision of Safe, Sustainable, High Quality Care 
	The general surgery team is committed to providing the highest standards of evidence-based care for our patients. The provision of high quality emergency general surgery services on two sites has historically been extremely challenging. Adequate consultant cover both during the day and out of hours is a prerequisite for a safe service. Maintaining consultant cover at Daisy Hill has been difficult and the situation will shortly be exacerbated as the number of consultants will be reducing from 6 to 3. On call
	The current position with regard to general surgery consultants in post and cover for the on call rota is shown in the table below: 
	The following changes will adversely affect consultant cover in the near future: 
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	These changes will affect the numbers as follows: 
	This will leave 2 substantive consultants and a long term locum based at DHH and providing out of hours cover. This number is insufficient to provide a workable rota both during the in and out of hours periods. Whilst locum cover can be utilised as an interim measure, it is unsustainable particularly for the out of hours periods, and it is also extremely costly. 
	The changes within UK surgical training specifically subspecialty specialisation and the decline of a wider exposure to surgical specialties during specialist registrar training, means that newly appointed consultant surgeons are less experienced and less confident of their abilities in emergency general surgery than their predecessors. They are less equipped to deal with the repertoire of cases presenting to District General Hospitals. Access to adequate peer support and mentoring for newly appointed consu
	Recruitment and Retention of Medical Staff 
	There is a finite pool of potential applicants for surgical consultants with Trusts competing to attract candidates from the same pool. Doctors are clear about their minimum requirements from the employing Trust in terms of career development/opportunities for sub-specialisation; rotas and work-life balance; access to specialist staff and resources such as critical care, interventional radiology, theatre lists etc; peer support particularly during the early period of their consultant career; and facilities 
	There have been and remain recruitment and retention problems to DHH surgery at consultant level. Within the past 5 years 6 separate consultant interviews have taken place and 8 surgeons were offered and accepted consultant positions in DHH.  Of these eight candidates: 
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	 The remaining three are in post in DHH; however, one applied for and was offered a position in CAH, and, like another DHH surgeon, is overdue for transfer to CAH.  
	The applicants to DHH consultant positions have also been small in number, and at the last two consultant interviews there was only one suitably qualified candidate. This is in contrast with recruitment for positions in CAH. Within the last two years there have been two consultant interview panels convened. At one, there were two jobs and three quality applicants. The unsuccessful candidate was tentatively offered a position in DHH, but declined the offer. At the second set of CAH interviews there were thre
	Making Best Use of Specialist Medical/Professional Expertise 
	Having access to a broad range of sub-specialty expertise would benefit patients and improve outcomes. Many general surgeons have specialised their practice in order to concentrate on treating conditions relating to one area or body system. While this has resulted in improved outcomes for patients requiring planned specialist intervention, it has also created difficulties in having an appropriately trained and available surgical workforce for the treatment and management of emergency general surgery patient
	Access to the necessary resources such as emergency theatres, diagnostic investigations and critical care is essential to provide the best possible care for acutely ill patients. Again it is not always possible to provide all of these essential elements on multiple sites. Funding is not the only constraint faced by the Trust. Increasingly the availability of staff is a significant constraint. There are plans and funding to strengthen the high dependency service at DHH to meet with Intensive Care Society gui
	Alignment with National and Regional Strategic Direction 
	Much of the national and regional strategy encourages Trusts to review current service models, optimise the deployment of available staff and introduce new models of care which avoid inappropriate admission and ensure patients are seen by the appropriate professional at the correct time. Nationally many Trusts have consolidated their emergency surgical surgery service on a single site with appropriate pathways. 
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	The 2016 expert panel review of health and social care in Northern Irelandhighlighted that one of the major flaws of the current medical workforce mix is that 
	‘it is focused on filling rotas and maintaining existing services, even where there are clear signs that these are not sustainable, rather than on detailed forecasting of demography and need’. 
	It recognised that it is proving extremely difficult to recruit and retain junior medical staff to deliver services where they would be unlikely to get the experience they need in terms of volumes and case mix in order to maintain their skills and develop new skills as reflected in the current, high level of vacancies in training posts. The need to invest in long term strategic change was emphasised rather than trying to maintain the ‘status quo’.  
	‘The success of any new service model will be absolutely dependent on staff being employed and deployed in such a way that makes the best use of their skills and which allows them to continue to develop as professionals while providing the services that users and patients need’. 
	The subsequent departmental strategy, Health and Wellbeing 2026 Delivering Togetherpresented by the then Minister of Health, endorsed the Expert Panel’s recommendations. In terms of reform to community and hospital services it stated: 
	‘Across many different services there is very strong evidence that concentrating specialist procedures and services in a smaller number of sites produces significantly better outcomes for patients, as well as a much better and more supportive environment for staff. The role of our hospitals will therefore fundamentally change as they will focus on delivering the highest quality of specialist and acute care. However, not every service will be available in every hospital’. 
	‘If we persist with our current models of care, even with the best efforts of all staff and more investment year on year, waiting lists will continue to grow, our expertise will continue to be diluted, and the best possible outcomes for patients will not be realised. This is both unsustainable and unacceptable. However, if we accept, as a whole range of reviews have, that our services are not best configured for our needs, then it follows that recruiting additional staff alone to prop up outdated service mo
	More recently the Minister’s plans to support the re-build of services and transform urgent and emergency care services include ambulance only emergency departments, the creation of urgent care centres and increasing ambulatory care provision with appropriate pathways for patients who do not require admission. 
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	SYSTEMS, NOT STRUCTURES: Expert Panel Report CHANGING HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE, Chair Professor Rafael Bengoa HEALTH AND WELLBEING 2026 DELIVERING TOGETHER, Department of Health, October 2016 
	The proposed future service model involves concentrating the emergency general surgery service on the CAH site, with acute cases presenting at DHH being transferred to CAH for ongoing care. The emphasis will be on assessment, diagnosis and timely appropriate transfer to CAH. Those patients requiring admission will be admitted to CAH. There will be no emergency surgical beds at DHH. Figure 1 depicts the flow of patients. 
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	Figure 1: Proposed Emergency General Surgical Flow 
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	Key Features: 
	At DHH there would be middle grade cover 24/7. The middle grade cover would be provided from home at night. 
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